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Explanatory Foreword

Introduction

The Council's financtal periormance for the year ended 31 March 2015 Is as set out in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditura Statement and its financial position is as set out in the Balance Sheet and Cash Fiow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2014/15 (the Code) and the Department of the Enviranment Accounts Direction, Circular LG
12/15 dated 31 March 2015, Itis the purpose of this foreword to explain, in and easily understandable way the
linancial facts in relation to the Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Banbridge District Councit's finances during the financial year 2014/15 and its
linancial position at the end of that year. It follows approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical in
pars.

The Explanatory Foreword is not part of the financial statements but is preparad on the basis that it Is consistant
with the linancial statements. In addition, the Explanatory Foreword does not purport fo comment on Council
policies.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider alt their interests and to prepare a full set of group financial
statemenlts where they have matenial interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (sea disclosure within
nota 28 for further details). Banbridge District Council does not have material interests in such bodies and
accordingly is not required to prepare group financial statements.

Financial Report

For the year ended 31 March 2015 the Council had a surplus of £432k as detailed below, increasing its General
Fund reserve from £2.16m to £2.60m. The Council's budgeted District Rate and General Grant income of £13.8m
was supplemented by £166k for finalisation payment of District Ratas and £12k additienat general grant payable.
The total net expenditure on conlinuing operations reported in the Comprehensive Incoms and Expenditura
Statement is £13.6m, whilst the Movement in Reserves Statement shows the accounting and timing adjustments
resulting in Reserve Balances of £2.6m in the General Fund, £385k in the Capital Fund and £813k in Earmarkad
reserves. The Repairs and Renewals Fund is also included within Earmarked reserves.

A summary of the Gouncil's performance compared ta budget is included as follows:

2014 /2015
Actual Budget Varlance
£ £ £

Nat Service Expandilure 11,239,604 11,925,760  (686,156)
MRP & Lease payments and Intarest 2,269,991 2,338,000 {68,009)
Nat Expenditure 13,509,595 14,263,760 (754,185}
Income from General Grant 1,651,252 1,639,115 12,137
Income from District Rates 12,290,517 12,124,645 165,872

Surplus / (Deficit) on District Fund balance for 432,174 {500,000) 932,174

Expenditure on capital projects during the year amounted to £2,262k, the most significant spend was on
replacement vehicles £109k and equipmant £331k, playground equipment £391k and improvements at the leisure
centre £471k. As at 31 March 2015, total borrowings taken out to fund such projacts were £18.8m as detalled in
note 16 of the Financial Statements; which also includes £1m short term borrowings Irom Craigavon Borough
Coungil,
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The accounts include the Mavement in Reserves Statement which shows the overall Council surplus/deficit for the
year and the ditterent reserves held by Council; the Comprehensive Income and Expenditura Statement which
shows the accounting cost of providing services; the Balance Sheet showing the Council's assets and Jiabifities and
the Cash Flow Statement showing the changes in cash in the periad.

Council Reserves are analysed into "usable reserves” ( I.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or raduce
local taxation ) and “unusable reserves”.

The net assets of the Council (assels less liabililies) are matched by these raserves held by the Council. Usable
reserves, ie those reservas that the Council may use to provide services, are subject to the need to maintain a
prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that
may only be used to jund capital expenditure or repay debt). Unusable Reserves are those that the authonity is not
able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses
{for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available lo provide services if the
assets arg sold; and reserves that hold timing ditferences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under reguiations’.

Retirement Benefits for employees were previously accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme. Under
the IFRS based Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting this Is no longer the case and Councils are
required to account for their pension plans on a delined bensfit basis. Councils are tharafore required 1o recognise
their defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets attributed to them on the balance sheet, Details
of the Relirement Benefits relating to the Council are detatled in note 20 to the Financlal Statements.

Anincrease in the Revaluation Reserve of £1,263k (2013/2014 Increase £8,775k) due to an indexalion exercise is
reflacted in the Fixed Assets, resulting in an increase in the valuation of assets in the balance sheet by the same
value.

The accounts have been prepared on a IFRS basis since 2010/2011. The date of Iransition lo IFRS was 1 April
2009.

In the current ecanomic climate, revenue spend is expecled lo ramain stalic in the incoming year with only a
marginal increase in District Rates income. Capital investment in the incoming year is expected to be less than in
recent years with expected spend on committed projects detailed at note 12,

The Council utilises Government Loan Fund for borrowing lor capilal expenditure. A summary of capital expenditure
funding s included at note 11.

The Reform of Local Government will see Banbridge District Council merge with its two neighbouring Councils as
from 1 April 2015, which has influenced budgeting and expenditure for both revenue and capital spend in the run
up lo this merger. A Stalutory Transilion Committee (STC) consisting of Elected Members of the three Councils was
in place lor part of the year up to the Local Government Elections in May 2014, with the new Council operating in
shadow farm for the 10 months to March 2015. Both bodies were govemed by guidance from the Depariment of the
Environmenl within current Legistation and Statutory requirements.

Post Balance Sheet Events

From 1st April 2015, Banbridge District Council will cease to exist and its functions will be transterred to the new
Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council.

Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council combines the previous councils of Armagh City, Banbridge
and Craigavon into one new bady constituted under the framework established by the Local Govemment Act
{Northem lreland) 2014,

Under reguiation 11 of the Local Governmant (Transitional, Supplementary, Incidental Provislons and
Modifications) Regulatiens {Northern Ireland) 2014, the new council has designated an officer as having
responsibility for the winding up of its predecessor councils.

This designated officer will have responsibility for the preparation of final statements of account for predecessor
councils in a form directed by the Depariment under regulation 4 of the Local Government (Accounls and Audit)
Regulations (Northem Irgland) 2006.

These accounts are prapared on a going concem basis in accardance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom.
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Statement of the Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities for the Statement
of Accounts

The Council’'s Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a council shall make
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. A council shall designate an officer of the
council as its chief financial officer and these arrangements shall be carried out under the supervision of its Chief
Financial Officer.

Under Regulation 5 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit} Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006 the
Council, or a Committee, is required by resolution to approve the accounts.

These accounts were approved by Council's Performance and Audit Committee on 25th June 2015 and were
subject to a number of material adjustments and disclosure amendments as noted on page 89.

The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities
Under Regulation 4(1) of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006, the

Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of Accounts in the form
directed by the Department of the Environment.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year
and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

° observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department of the Environment including compliance
with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom;

® follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting policies on a
consistent basis, and;

) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:

° keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and;

° take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Banbridge District Council
Annual Governance Statement
2014/2015

Despite Banbridge District Council ceasing on the 31 March 2015, this governance statement has
been prepared on the basis that the new Council will largely continue these governance
arrangements.

Scope of Responsibility

Banbridge District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted
for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council alsc has a duty under Local
Government (Best Value) Act (Northem Ireland) 2002 to make arrangements for continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

Banbridge District Council is required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government, and which is in full compliance with the Framework for the year commencing 1
April 2014. This statement explains how the Council meets the requirements of Regulation 2A of
the Local Government Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland 2006) in
relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.

Banbridge District Council's financial management arrangements conform to the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government (2010). This includes compliance with Principle 5, as the Chief Financial Officer role
was filled by the Acting Chief Executive for the year ended 31 March 2015, who was professionally
qualified and suitably experienced. The Local Government arrangements are such that the CFO is
also supported by a number of fully qualified and experienced staff within the Corporate Services
Directorate who are also members of various bodies within the Consultative Committee of
Accountancy Bodies (CCAB) and as such ensure the decisions made are based on sound
technical accounting knowledge and understanding.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values, by which the
Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with, and
leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives
and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective
services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the



likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Banbridge District Council for the year ended 31
March 2015 and up to the date for the approval of the financial statements.

The Governance Framework

The Council complies with the following key elements of the systems and processes that comprise
the Council's governance arrangements including arrangements for:

1. Identifying and communicating the Council’s vision of its purpose and intended outcomes for
citizens and service users.

This is achieved by the establishment and monitoring of the Council’s key priorities and objectives
through its Corporate, Financial and Service planning processes. Banbridge District Council
developed a corporate plan for 2011 — 2015. A copy of the corporate plan is on the Council's web
site.

2. Reviewing the Council's vision and its implications for the Council’s governance arrangements.
g

The Council's 2011-2015 Corporate Plan will help Council focus on the future. The plan is based
on themes and priorities identified by Elected Members, senior managers, staff and other key
stakeholders.

The Corporate Plan is reviewed annually via Departmental Reports and an Annual Report. The
Corporate Plan helps Council focus on the future and establishes values that the Council wants to
create over the 4 year period of the plan. In doing this the Corporate Plan provides a sense of
direction for the Council.

3. Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance with
the Council’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources.

This is achieved by establishing and reporting on performance targets, by benchmarking key
performance indicators against other Gouncils and by customer engagement, which will include:

» Customer Charter

> Surveys and consultations

> A formal complaints system

> A performance management system
> Service Reviews

4. Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non-executive,
scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective
communication.

The Council has long established protocols supported by a Committee system, standing orders
and an effective performance management framework.

Corporate objectives of the Council are linked to levels of responsibility and individual staff through
the Departmental business planning process and through the use of Personal Development
Planning.



The Councit have Accounts Scrutineers who scrutinise all accounts for payment on a monthly
basis.

5. Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of
behaviour for members and staff.

Guidance and standards of behaviour are incorporated into staff handbooks and Councillor
guidance and induction training programs. All Members receive a copy of the Northern Ireland
Code of Local Government Conduct which is a code of recommended practice for the guidance of
Councillors. A new Code of Conduct came into effect during 2014/15 as part of the Local
Government (NI) Act 2014,

The CIPFA Framework for Delivering Good Governance in Local Government recommends that
local authorities put in place arrangements to ensure that employees of the authority are not
influenced by prejudice, bias or conflicts of interest in dealing with different stakeholders and put in
place appropriate processes to ensure that they continue to operate in practice. A Gifts and
Hospitality Register is in place, the purpose of which is to counter any possible accusations or
suspicions of breach of the Code of Conduct by staff.

6. Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions and supporting
procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and the processes and
controls required to manage risks.

The Council regularly revisits Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and processing procedures.
Council does not have comprehensive notes/manuals on all processes and controls and, while
open to evidence of good practice, does not at present consider it necessary to undertake an
overhaul.

The system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information, financial regulations, administrative procedures (including segregation of duties where
possible), management supervision and a system of delegation and accountability. Development
and maintenance of the system is undertaken by managers within the Council, whilst Directors
report to the individual Committees where Member decisions are made and subsequently ratified
by Full Council. In particular the system includes:

> Budgetary Control

> Purchasing Procedures

> Corporate Planning

> Risk Management Strategy/Policy

The Council have the following structures, which facilitate staff development, conduct and good
governance, in place:

> Committee reporting

> Induction training

> Fraud awareness training

> Gifts and Hospitality Policy

> Fraud (including fraud response plan) and whistle blowing polices



7. Undertaking the core functions of an Audit Committee, as identified in CIPFA's Audit
Committees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities.

The Council established an Audit Committee during 2007/08 which reports to the Policy and
Resources Committee. There are 4 Members nominated at the Council AGM for the duration of
the Council, with the Acting Chief Executive, Head of Finance and the Principal Internal Auditor
from Craigavon Borough Council attending all meetings during 2014-2015. The Local Government
Auditor is also invited and attends as considered necessary.

During 2014-15 the Audit Committee met in April 2014, June 2014, December 2014 and February
2015. The Audit Committee has not appointed a Lay Representative.

8. Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and
that expenditure is lawful.

The Chief Financial Officer is the designated officer responsible for the proper administration of the
Council's financial affairs and Council's financial management arrangements conform to the CIPFA
governance arrangements on the role of the Chief Financial Officer.

It is the responsibility of each Director to ensure that agreed procedures are followed within their
own specific department. Each Director is required to sign an annual Stewardship Certificate which
gives assurance that controls and risks within their specific area of responsibility are effective.

Managers are aware of their responsibility for ensuring:

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures
Compliance with statutory responsibilities regarding Health & Safety

That expenditure is lawful within their area of responsibility

That staff conduct council business in accordance with the law and proper standards

That public money, for which they are responsible, is safeguarded and properly accounted
for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

YV VVYY

The Council maintain a panel of legal specialists and have access to a wide range of expertise.

9. Whistleblowing, receiving and investigating complaints from the public.

A Whistleblowing Policy is in place and is available on the public server for all staff. Whistleblowing
plays an important role, both as an instrument of good governance and a manifestation of a more
open culture. The overall essence of the policy is that staff should be able to bypass the direct
management line and go outside the Council if they feel that management is engaged in an
improper course.

Council have a Corporate Complaints Procedure for members of the public

10. Identifying the development needs of Members and senior officers in relation to their strategic
roles, supported by appropriate training.

Training needs for officers are identified through the Personal Development Planning scheme. A
training needs analysis for Members was carried out in conjunction with Craigavon and Armagh
Councils and training continues across the three council areas.
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In order to ensure ali staff are properly prepared for the transition to the new super Council,
personal training and other development opportunities have continued throughout the year
designed to assist staff in the transition to the new organisation.

The Council maintained its Investors In People Accreditation.

11. Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other
stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation.

The Council employs a professional marketing section and complies with the best practices in
openness and transparency of its goals and decisions. The following activities are channels of
communication with all sections of the community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability
and encouraging open consultation

The corporate plan

The “Cutting Edge” civic magazine.
The Council's web site

Social Media

Complaints handling system

Elected Members

Council Meetings are open to the public
Ongoing consultation processes

VY VVYVYVY

The Media are invited to all Council meetings. There is clear promotion of Council services through
pro-active media relations in addition to a range of marketing communications on a range of
Council services such as bin collection calendars.

As a pre- requisite to merging with the neighbouring councils, significant marketing of the new
organisation has been embedded into the communications strategy, in particular since the election
to the new Council in May 2014,

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is
informed by the work of the executive managers within the Council who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the governance environment, Internal Audit's annual report, and
also by comments made by the external auditors.

The Council has developed a Performance Management Framework which integrates planning,
risk management and performance management with well-defined roles for Senior Officers and
Councillors, Internal control is evidenced by the role of the Audit Committee and assisted by
internal audit staff from a neighbouring Council as part of the collaboration agenda.

The distribution of relevant responsibilities is evidenced in the following roles:
a) Members

The Council's Standing Orders and Financial Regulations provide the framework for its decision
making processes and sets out the detailed procedures and codes of conduct by which Members
and officers operate to achieve Council objectives. Members meet regularly on a formal basis to
set the strategic direction and monitor the service delivery of the Council. The following Committee
Structure is in place:



Environmental Services Committee
Leisure & Development Committee
Policy & Resources Committee
Audit Committee

Public Services Committee
Statutory Transition Committee

YVVVYY

Members meet annually at the start of the budget setting cycle to consider strategic issues, the
allocation of capital and revenue resources and investigate areas for efficiency savings.

b) Senior Officers

Formal assurance is provided by Directors that policies and procedures are being applied in the
initiation, development and delivery of service plans. Where gaps have been identified, action
plans have been drafted and responsibility for implementation assigned.

In signing their Stewardship Certificate on the Effectiveness of Controls, Directors opinions were
informed by the following:

> Assurance from the relevant Department's management team

» Departmental Business Plans including Key Performance Indicators
> Departmental and Operational Risk Registers

> Operational policies and procedures

> Regular management and monitoring information

> Internal audit reports

> Management Supervision

> System of delegation and accountability

c) The Audit Committee / Overview and Scrutiny Committees / Risk Management Committee

The Audit Committee provides assurance on the adequacy of the Council's risk management
framework and associated control environment. It provides an independent scrutiny of the
Council’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it exposes it to risk and
weakens the contro! environment.

The annual review of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee was presented at the December
2014 Audit Commitiee meeting. This review was completed against the CIPFA ‘best practice’
checklist and was considered satisfactory.

d) Internal Audit

Internal Audit is carried out by a neighbouring Council through a Service Level Agreement. A
quality review of the service is undertaken through annual self-assessments and regular external
reviews, most recently by CIPFA in 2011/2012.

The effectiveness of the Council's internal controls is examined in detail through the work of the
Audit plan. The audit plan is based on a needs and risk assessment process that focuses
resources on higher risk areas and meets the professional standards required by CIPFA.

Based on evidence from planned audits, reports are issued to the Audit Committee on any major
weaknesses that have been identified in the internal controls examined, and highlights where
important improvements are considered necessary.



During 2014-15 fourteen audits were completed, none of which resulted in limited assurances as
at 31 March 2015. Six audits were substantial and eight were satisfactory with Internal Audit
reporting an overall assurance rating of a satisfactory level of internal control within the Council's

systems and procedures.

implementation of recommendations by management has been agreed and Post Audit Reviews
wili monitor progress on these recommendations during 2015-16.

e) Other explicit review/assurance mechanisms

External audit provides a level of assurance through the provision of their annual audit and issuing
of a Report to those charged with Governance within the Council, which includes an Action Plan to
address issues identified.

To ensure ongoing accreditation to ISO 14001, the standard the Council works to in relation to
environmental management, a further audit by the external body was conducted in 2014-15 and
Council maintained its certification to 1SO 14001.

Whilst Internal Audit identified the need for certain improvements, there were no issues raised that
are considered to represent a significant governance issue and as part of their annual report to the
Audit Committee, Internal Audit issued an overall satisfactory annual assurance.

The Council's Audit Commitiee is kept informed of any suspected fraud or other irregularity.

Significant Governance Issues

ABSENTEEISM

Banbridge District Council continues to actively monitor its absenteeism rates.
Absence for 2014-15 was 10.43 days per employee compared to 14.01 days per employee the
previous year.

Council continues to implement the Action Plan included in the HSENI Stress Survey report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM

From 1 April 2015, under the Reform of Local Government (RLG), the number of Councils in
Northern iIreland reduced from the 26 existing to 11 new Councils, established under the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Boundaries) Act
(Northern Ireland) 2008. From that date the Northern Ireland Executive has agreed to transfer
some functions currently carried out by NI Government Departments and give some new
responsibilities to the 11 new Councils. The new councils will be stronger, more efficient and will

deliver more effective services.
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The new councils came into existence on 26™ May 2014, operating in shadow form until they take
over full responsibility for local government on 1* April 2015 when the 26 existing councils cease to
exist. The final accounts for Banbridge District Council will therefore be for the 2014/15 financial
year. The Local Government (Transitional, Supplementary, [ncidental Provisions and Modifications)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 made transitional provision with respect to local government
reorganisation including positions of responsibility within the new council for the winding up and
final accounts of existing councils.

The Local Government Act (Northemn lreland) 2014 introduced the legislative frame work for
Northern Ireland's 11 new councils and has made transitional provisions to provide for the transfer
of staff, assets and liabilities from the current 26 councils to the 11 new councils, and from
departments transferring functions to the new councils.

ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE

At the 1 April 2014 the previous Chief Executive was replaced by the Director of Corporate
Services as Acting Chief Executive for the final year of the Council. Subsequently, in the summer
of 2014, the Head of Human Resources and the Head of Finance & IT were appointed to the new
Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council, with their responsibilities covered by
existing staff within the Corporate Services Department.

Signed ....civeienneey T ..... Date.........26 October 2015 ..........

. Date ..........26 October 2015 ........ceerereres

H

Signed .....4. 0 LG

Chair of the Performa Audit Committee
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

(a) ~ the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015 on pages 15 to 88 has been prepared In
the form directed by the Department of the Environment and under the accounting palicies set out on
pages 19 to 35.

(b) in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and
cash flows for the finandial year and the financlal position as at tha end of the financial year ending 31
March 2015.

sesasres ITFisednesoneeasfovncnncnnrrnnssrrene demrdncsbasnsens

Chief Finanr;ia-l Officer
26 October 2015

-------------------------------------------------

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by rasolution of the Performance and Audit Committee on 25 June 2015 and
were subject to a number of material adjustments and disclosure amendments as noted on page 89.

[l

-------------------------------------------------------------

Chair of the Performapce‘and Audit Committee
26 October 2015

------ S L e L L e T P S L PP Y LR T YT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ARMAGH CITY, BANBRIDGE AND CRAIGAVON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

| have audited the financial statements of Banbridge District Council for the year ended 31 March 2015 under
the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements comprise the Movement in
Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement
and the related notes. The financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
within them.

This report is made solely to the Members of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council in
accordance with the Local Government {(Nerthern Ireland} Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in
the Statement of Responsibilities. Under the transitional arrangements set out in the Local Government
{Transitional, Supplementary, Incidental Provisions and Modifications) Regulations Northern Ireland)} 2014,
Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council takes responsibility for the financial statements of
Banbridge District Council.

Respective respansibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and the independent auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities, the Chief
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial
position as at the end of the financial year. My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice. |
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards
require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves abtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
Banbridge District Council's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by Banbridge District Council; and the overall
presentation of the financizl statements. In addition [ read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Statement of Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If | become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies | consider the implications far my report.

Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion:

e the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory
requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2014-15 , of the financial position of Banbridge District Council as at 31 March 2015 and its
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

e the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government
{Accounts and Audit}) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2006 and the Department of the
Environment directions issued thereunder.

Opinion on other matters
* In my opinion the information given in the Explanatory Foreword for the financial year ended 31
March 2015 is consistent with the financial statements.



Matters on which I report by exception

| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if, in my opinion:
¢  The Annual Governance Statement:

o does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2014-15 ;

o does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department of the Environment;
o is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my audit; or

* adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

¢ the statement of accounts is not in agreement with the accounting records; or

s | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit.

Certificate

| certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Banbridge District Council in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of
Audit Practice.

Louise Mason

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

Date 25 \ockede 2O\S
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BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Camprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2015

This statement shows the accaunting costin the year of providing services In accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amaount to ba
funded from taxatlon. Councils ralse taxation to cover expenditura in accordance with regulations; this may be difterent from the accounting cost. The taxation position is

shown in tha Movement in Reserves Statement.

Services Expenditure

Lelsure and Aecreational Services

Environmental Services

DRM and Corporate Management

Other Services

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations
Other Operating Expenditure

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Surplus or Deficit on Discontinued Operatlons

Net Operating Expenditure

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

Surplus/{Deficit} on the Provision of Services

Surplus/(Deflcit) on revaluation of non-current assets

Impairmant losses on non-current assets charged to the

Ravaluation Reserve

Surplus/(Deficit) arising on revaluation of available-for-sale

financial assets

Rameasurements of the Net Dafingd Benefit Liability

{Asset)
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

201415 2013114
Notes Gross| Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Cost| Expenditure Income Cost
£ £ £ £ £ £
8,543,252 1,875,388 8,667,854 6,015,757 1,915,497, 4,100,260
6,496,216 1,209,779 5,268,437 E.988,4%6 925,267 6,063,229
1,015,944 13,767 1,002,377 1,110,340 169,177 841,163
2141911 1,461,216 680,895 1,920,145 1,426,338 483,807
4-6 18,197,223 4,560,150 13,837,173 16,034,738 4,436,279 11,598,458
7 0 q oL o 402 (402)
g 1,305,170 8,623 1,206,547 1,374,155 36,758 1,337,397,
0 0 o 0 0 of
19,502,493 4,568,773 14.933.1201 17,408,893 4,473 438 12,935,454
9 0 14,234,712 (14,234,712) 0 13,820,768 (12,820,768)
19,502,493 18,803,485 (699,008} 17,408,893 18,284,207 085,314
10a/108/10d 1,263,003 8.774,728
1oa/10v/10d [i] 0
25a/25h ] of
20 {1,344,000) 610,000
{80,997} 9,384,728
{780,005) 10.270,042|
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BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Balance Sheat As At 31 March 2015

The Balance Shest shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the Council's assets and liabllites. The net assets of the Council
(assels less liabllities) are malched by the reserves hefd by the Councll. Reserves are reported In two categories. Tha first category of

reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need ta maintain a

prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to

fund capilal expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those that the authority Is not able to use to provide

sarvices. This calegory of reserves Includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Raserve)
where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets ara sold; and raserves tha hold timing diflerences shown

In the Mavement in Reserves Stalement ling 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basls under regulations'.

Property Plant & Equipment (PP&E)
Land & Buildings

[nirastructure Assets

Landiill Site

Vehicles, Plant, Fumniture and Equipment
Community Assets

PP&E under Construction

Surmplus Assets

Heritage Assets

Investment Properties

Intangible Assets

Assets Held for Sale

Long Term Invesiments

Investment in Assoclates and Joint Ventures
Long Term Debiors

LONG TERM ASSETS

Shont Term Investments
Inventorias

Short Term Debtors

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Assets Held for Sale

CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Ovardraft

Short Term Borrowing

Short Term Creditors
Provisions

Liabtities in Disposal Groups
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long Tenn Creditors

Provisions

Long Term Borrowing

Other Long Term Liabilities
Donated Assels Account

Capital Grants Recelpts in Advance
LONG TERM LIABILITIES

[NET ASSETS

USABLE RESERVES

Capital Recaipts Reserve CRR
Capital Grants Unapplled Account

Capltal Fund

Renewal and Repalrs Fund

Othear Balances and Raserves

General Fund Gen Fd
UNUSABLE RESERVES
Capital Adjustment Account CAA

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
Revaluation Aeserve

Avallable tor Sale Financial instruments Reserve
Pensions Resarve

Capital Receipis Dafarred Account

Accumulated Absences Account

Landfill Regulations Reserve

Provisions Discount Rata Reserve

NET WORTH

Notes

10a/10b
10a/10b
10a/10b
10a/10b
10a/10b
10a/t0b
10a/10b
10a/10b

10a/tob
10a/70b

15a

14a

15b

140
24h

T16a
17a
18

17h

16b
520
21
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2014115 2012114

E £
38,046,960 36,974,991
35,886,264 34,592,031
4] 0

o ¢]
1,054,924 1,177,486
0 0

1] 89,702
1,105,772 1,105,772
1,088,750 1,088,750
0 0

10,000 10,000

0 0

0 0

0 0

141.315 126,258
39,267,025 38,199,999
0 0

81,954 60,693
3,382,514 1,640,991
1,827,520 3,941,247
a Y
5,391,988 5,642,931
0 1]
1,895,354 §51,560
2,525,951 2,745,303
0 [+]

0 0
4,421,305 3,696,863
0 0

Yy g
17,880,955 18,780,358
7,730,898 5,048,849
0 0

0 0
25,621,853 24,730,207
14,635,855 15,415,860
3,787,953 3,638,779
Yy ¢

0 0

385,040 668,040

0 0

813,482 813,482
2,589,431 2,157,257
10,847,802 11,777,081
7,707,392 7,448,056
0 0
10,987,694 10,396,843
0 0
{7,729,188) {5,842,188)
Y o

{117,996) {125,630)
0 0

0 0
14,635,855 15,415,860



BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cash Flow Statement at 31 March 2015

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period.
The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operaling activities is a key
Indicator of the extent to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the
recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the
Council. The Council reports cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method, whereby net Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services is adjusted for the effects of transaclions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of revenue or expense associated with investing or
financing cash flows.

Notes 2014115 2013114
£ £

Net {surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (699,008) £85,314
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of
services for noncash movements 621,324 1,710,580
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit
on the provision of services that are investing and
financing activities (292,943) {372,465)
Net cash flows from operating activities 24a), 24c) (370,627) 2,223,429
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 24d) (1,691,540) 313,488
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 24¢) 48,440 (952,546)
Net increase or decrease in cash and cash
equivalents {2,013,727) 1,584,371
Cash and cash equivalents at the heginning of the
reporting period 3,941,247 2,356,876
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period 1,927,520 3,941,247
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BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements

1a

Accounting Policies
General Principles

The Staterment of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions for the 2014/15 financial year
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2015. The Council is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Departmant of the Environment in accordance with
regulations 4 (1) and {2} in the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northarn
Ireland) 2006 in accordance with proper accounting practices. These praclices primarily comprise
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and the Service
Reporting Code of Practice 2014/15 {SeRCOP). supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The accounting convention adopted in the Statemeant of Accounts is principally
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of cartain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments. The Code of Praclice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15
also requires disclosure in raspect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Accruals of Income and Expenditure

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recagnised when the Council transfars the significant risks and
rawards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service polantial
associated wilh the transaction will fiow to the Council.

- Ravenue Irom ths provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure raliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Supplies are recorded as expendilure when they are consumed — where there is a gap batween
the dale supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance
Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) ara recorded
as expanditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

- Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of the
eflective intarest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash tows fixed or
determined by the conltract.

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid,
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheat. Whare it is doubtful that
debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the
incoma that might not ba collected.

il) Acquisitions

Council has no acquired operations or trasferred operations under machinery of government
arrangements during the financial year.

iiiy Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

Council has completed payment of costs following implementation of its Single Status Peficy.

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in no
mora than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily convartible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash Flow Staterment, cash and
cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Council's cash management. Bank overdrafts are shown within current liabilities
on the balance sheat.
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v) Contingent Aasets

A contingent asset arisas where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet
but disclosed in a note lo the accounts whera it is probable that there will be an Inflow of economic
benefits or service potential.

vi} Contingent Liabilitiea

A contingent liability arises where an avent has taken place that gives the Council a possibla
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
gvents not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances
where a provision would otherwise be made but sither it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will ba required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Caontingent liabilities are
not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

vil) Discontinued Operations

Council has no discontinued operations or transferred operations under combinations of public
sictor bodies during the financial year.

viil) Employee Benefits

Shori-term employee benefits are those due to be saltled within 12 menths of the year-end. Thay
include such benefits as wages and salarles, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and
non-monglary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, and are recognised as an expense in the
year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday
entitlements eamed by employaas but not taken belore the year-end and which employees can carry
forward into the next financial year.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a dacision by the Council to terminate an
officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary
redundancy and ara charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the
Comprehensive Incoms and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of: a) when the olfer cannot ba
withdrawn or b) when the related restrucuring costs are incurred.

Where termination banefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
General Fund balance to bs charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In
the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions
Raserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancemeant termination bengfits
and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such
amounts payable but unpaid al the year-and.

Post Employment Benefits
Employess of the Council are membars of the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension
Fund administered by the Northem Ireland Local Governmant Officers' Superannuation Commitiee.

The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), eamed as
employees worked for the Council.
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The Northern (reland Local Government OHicers' Pension Fund

The Northem Ireland Local Govarnment Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund attributabls to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method -
i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be mada in ralation to retirement benefils eamed
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee tumover rales , ete,
and projections of projected eamings for currant employees.

Liabllities ara discounted to their value al current prices, using a discount rate of 3.2% (based on the
indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds on the iBoxx Sterling Corporate index, AA
over 20 years with recently re-rated bonds removed from the index.

The assets of the Northem Ireland Local Government Oificars' pension fund atiributable to the
Council arg included in the Balance Sheat at their fair value:

quoted securities - current bid price
unquoted securities — professional estimate
property — markst value

unitised securities — current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

Within the Cost of Services

Current Service Cost - the increase In the present value of the defined benefit obligation
(liabilities) resulting from employee service in the current period.

Past Service Cost — (where applicable) the change in the prasent value of the defined
benefil obligation for employee service in prior periods, resulting fram a plan amandment
(the introduction or withdraw! of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a curtailment (a
significant reduction in the number of employees covered by the plan}.

Any Gains or Losses on Settlement - (where applicable) arising where a council enters
into a transaction that eliminates all further lagal or constrictive obligations for part or all of
the benefits provided under a defined benefit plan.

Within Financing and investment income and Expenditure

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) — the change in the net defined
benelit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of lime,

Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasuraments}

The Return on Plan Assets - excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net
Dalined Benelfit Liability (Asset). This includes interast, dividends and other income derived
from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan
assets, less any cosls of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself
other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of
the defined benefit obligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the present value of the defined benslit
obligation resulting from: a) experience adjustments (the effects of ditferences between the
previous actuarial assumplions and what has actually occurred) and b) the effects of
changes in actuarial assumptions.

Any change in the Effect of the Asset Ceiling — {whers applicabla) excluding amaunts
included in the Net Interest on the Net Definad Benefit Liability {Asset).

Within the Movemant in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contributions by Scheme Participants — tha increase in scheme liabilities and assets
duse to payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contributlon increases
pension due to the amployee in the future).

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in schame assets due lo payments into
the schame by the employer.
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In relation to retirement benefits, statutary provisions require the Genera! Fund balanca to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pensicn fund or diractly to pensioners in the
year, nol the amount calculated according fo the relavant accounting standards. In the Movement in
Reserves Statement, appropriations are made to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
notional debits and credits for ratirament benslits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The
negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the
General Fund of being required to account for ratirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather
than as benefits are eamed by employses

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of eary relirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member
of staff ara accrued in the year of the decislon to make the award and accounted for using the same
policies that ars applied to the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers’ pension fund.

ix) Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance shest date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised
for issue. Two types of events can be identified

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the
Staternent of Accounts Is adjusted to reflect such events

- those tha! are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting perod — the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, bul where a calegory of events would have a
materlal effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the evenls and thair estimated
financial effect

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they ara authorised for
issue. This date will be recorded on the financial statements and is usually the date the Local
Government Auditor issues his certificate and opinion. Where material adjustmenis are made in this
period they will be disclosed.

Evenis taking place altar the date of authorisation for issue are not raflected in the Stalement of
Accounts,

x) Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are malerial, their nature and amount is disclosed separately,
aither on the face of the Comprehensive Incoma and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the
accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Council's financial
performance.

i) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a changs In accounting policies or to comect a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e., in the currant
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise io a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other avents
and conditions on the Council's financia! position or financial performance. Where a change is
made, it is applied retrospactively by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the
prior period as If the new palicy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospaclively by amending opening
balances and comparativa amounts for the prior period.

Page 22



xii) Financial Instruments

Most financial instruments held by Councils would fall to be classified into just ona class of financial
liability and two classes of financial assets:

Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cost

Financial Assets

Loans and Receivables
Avallable for Sale

Financial lfabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet whan the Council becomes a party o the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially maasured at fair value and are
carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are
based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interast for the
instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futura cash
paymanis over tha lite of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outslanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year
according to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the
Financing and Investiment income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expsnditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has laken
place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that Involves the madilication or exchange of
existing instruments, the premium or discount Is respectively deducted from or added to the
amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statament is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the alfective Interest
rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, regulations allow the impact on the Genera! Fund Balance to be spread over future
years. The Council has a policy of spreacing the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on
the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. The
reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the
net charge required against the District Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Finanecial Assets

Financial assets are classified into two types:
- loans and raceivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an
active market

- avalilable-for-sale assets - that have a quoted market price and/or do not hava fixed or
determinable payments.
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Loans and Recelvables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are
then measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and tnvastment Income and
Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for Interest receivable
are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rale of interest for the
instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount prasented
in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest
credited o the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement is the amount recaivable for the
year in the loan agreement.

Council has not made any ioans to voluntary organisations al less than markat rates soft loans).
When soft loans are made. a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (debited to the appropriate service) {or the prasant value of the interest that will be
forsgone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding
principal. Interest is credited to the Financing and Jnvestment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of interest
than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the ditference serving to increase the
amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions requira that the impact of soft
loans on the District Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year - the reconciliation
of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensiva Income and Expenditure Statement to the
nel gain required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likefhood arising from a past event that
payments dus under the contract will not be made, the assel Is wrilien down and a charge made to
the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statament. The impairment loss is measurad as the differance between the camying
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the assel’s original
elfectiva interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Incoma and
Expenditure Statement.

Available-for-Sale Assets

Avallable-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheel when the Council bacomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair
value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
tor interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rats of
interast for the instrument. Where there are no lixed or determinable payments, income (s.g.,
dividends) is credited to the Comprshensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes
receivable by the Council,

Assals are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following
principles:

- instruments with quoted markat prices - the market price
- other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis
- equity shares with no quoted markat prices — independent appraisal of company valuations.
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Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in tha Available-for-Sale Reserve and tha galn/loss is
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for -Sale Financial Assets. The
exceplion is wherg impalrment losses have been incurred — these are debited to the Financing and
Investmant Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditura Statement,
along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of & likelhood arising from a past event that
payments due under tha contract will not be made (fixed or detarminable payments) or fair value
falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment
Incomeg and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the asset
has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the assal's
original effective intarest rate. Otherwise, the Impairment loss is measured as any sharfall of fair
value against the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any principal repaymaent and
amortisation).

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-racognition of the asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumnulated gains or losses praviously recognised in the
Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carriad at cost (less any impairment
losses).

Council has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {such as derivatives),

Instruments Enterad Into Bafore 1 April 2008

The Council entered into & number of financiai guarantees that are not required to be accounted for
as financial instruments. These guarantees are reflected in the Statement of Accounts to the extent
that provisions might be required or a contingent liability note is needed under the policies set out in
the sections on Provisions, Contingant Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

xiii) Foreign Currency Transiation

Where the Council has enterad Into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaclion
is converted into stering at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective.
Whate amounts in forgign currancy are oulstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot
exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or lossas are recognised in the Financing and
Invastment Income and Expanditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

xiv) Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, govemment granis and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonabla
assurance that;

- the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts racognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have besen satistied. Conditions are
stipulations that specify thal the future economic banelits or service potential embodied in the asset
acquired using the grant or contribution are raquired to be consumed by the reciplent as specified or
future aconomic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and cantributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisiied, the grant or contribution is
cradiled to the relevant service line {attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and
Non-Specific Grant Income {non-ring-fanced revenue grants and all capita! grants} in the
Comprahensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Fage 25



Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditura Statament, they
are raversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
grant has yet lo be used o finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied
Reserve. Whera it has baen applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the
Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve ara transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have
been applied to fund capital axpenditure.

xv) Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the
Council as a result of past events (e.9. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected thal
future economic benafits or service patential will {low from the intangible asset to the Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is tachnically
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the Council
will ba able to generate futurs economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or
use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the
asset and restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research expenditure is not
capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the websile is salely or primarily
intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of
the assals held by the Council can be determined by relerence to an active market. In praclice, no
intangible asset held by the Council meats this criterion, and they are therelore carried at amortisad
cosl. The dapreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life 1o the relevant
service ling(s) in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenaver there Is an indication that the
asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in Cost af
Services on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Whare expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisatian, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitied to have an impact
on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the District Fund
Balance in the Movement in Raservas Staternent and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and
{for any sale proceeds greater than £2k) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

xvi) Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Shaet at the lower of cost and nel realisable value. The cost
of inventories is assigned using the First In First Out costing formula.

Long Term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus or deficit on the
provision of services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the
financial year.
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xvii} Investment Property

Investment properties are those thal are used solely to aarn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Tha definition is not met if the property is used In any way to facilitate the delivery of services or
praduction of goods or is held for sala.

Investment properties are measured [nitially at cost and subsequentiy at fair value, based on the
amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at ann's length.
Investment properties ara not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions
at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same
treaiment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited 1o the Financing and Investment
Incomae ling in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemant and rasult in a gain tor the

General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses ars not parmitted by

statutory arrangements to have an Impact on the District Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore raversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and

posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve.

xviii) Landfill Allowance Schemes
The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme (Northem Ireland)
Regulations 2005. Loca! Authorities are allocated annual target figures for tha maximum amount of
biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there are no tradable allowances. It is
not a 'cap and trade’ scheme since landfill allowances are not tradable. For this reason, landfill
allowances are not recognised as assels on the Balance Sheet

xix) Leases

Leasess are classified as linance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidanta! to ownarship of the property from the iessor to the lesses. All other
leases are classilied as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and bulldings elements ara considered
separately lor classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convay a right 1o usa an asset in
retumn for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of spacific assets.

Tha Council as Lessee

Finance Leasa:

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases s recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease's inception (or the present value
of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the
obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council ars added to the carying amaunt of
the asset. Pramiums paid on entry inlo a lease are applied to wriling down the leasa liability.
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments ara apportioned batween:

- a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the propeny - applled to write down the lease
liability, and

- a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditura ling in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditura Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for uging the policies
applied generally lo such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease tarm if this is
shorter than the asset's estimated useful life.
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The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment
iosses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual provision is made from revenue towards
the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depregiation and
impalrment iosses are therafore replaced by a revenue provision in the General Fund Balance, by
way ol an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference betwean the two.

Operaling Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense of the services banefiting from use of the leased praperty, plant or
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not
match the pattem of paymenits {e.g.. there is a rent-free period at the commencament of the lease).

The Council as Lessor
Finance Leases

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
relevant asset is writien out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease,
the carrying amount of the assel in the Balance Sheet {whelhar Property, Plant and Equipment or
Assets Held for Sale) is written off 1o the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditura Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the
Council's net investment in the lease, Is credited to the same line in tha Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Stalement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal {i.e. netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease asset {long tarm debtor) in
the Balance Shest.

Lease rentals raceivable are apportioned between:

- a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied ta wiite down the lease assat
{fong 1erm debtor) togather with any premiums received, and

- finance income {credited to the Financing and Invesiment income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permittad by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and will be required to be treated as a
capital receipt. Whera a premium has been recsived, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Capilal Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Resarves Statement. Where the
amount due in relation to the lease asset is 1o be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial
years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipls Reserve in
the Movement in Reserves Stalement. When the future rentals are paid, the element for the charge
for the acquisition of the Interest in the properly is used to wiite down the lease asset (debtor). At
this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipls Reserve.

The writtan-oft value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is
fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the Genera! Fund Balance In the Mavement in
Reserves Statement.

Operating Leases

Whera the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
asset is relained in the Balance Shaet. Rental income is credited to the Other Oparating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credils are made on a
straight-line basis gver the life of the lease, even if this does not maich the pattemn of payments
(e.g., there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in
nagoliating and arranging the lease ara added to the carmying amount of the relevant asset and
charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
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xx) Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.
The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Whera thare is a subsequent decrease to fair valug less
costs to sell, the loss Is posted to the Other Cperaling Expendilure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair valua are recognised only up lo the amount of any
previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. Additional policy
detail requirad whare a Council Is carrying a disposal group as an Asset Held for Sale

It assets no longer meet the critaria ta be classified as Held for Sale, they are reclassitied back to
non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before thay were classified as Held
for Sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognisec
had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the
decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped are not reclassilied as Assels
Held for Sa'e.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amaount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off 1o the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the
gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) ara credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e.
nelted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Amounis received lor a disposal are categorised as capial receipls and credited 1o the Capital
Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve irom the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statemeant.

The writtan-off value of disposals is not a charga against district rates, as the cost of fixed assets Is
fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to
the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Resarves
Statament.

xxi} Overheads and Support Services

The costs of ovarheads and support services are charged to those that benafit from the supply or
service in accordance with the costing principlas of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Praclice
2014/15 (SeRCOF). The lota! absorption costing principle is used — the full cost of overheads and
support services are shared between users in proportion to the benafits received, with the exception
of:

- Corporate and Democratic Core — costs relating to the Council's status as a multi-lunctional,
demacratic arganisation.

- Non Distributed Costs — the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and
any depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-aperational properties.

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the
Comprehensive Income and Expanditure Statement , as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing
Services.

xxii} Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are heid for usa in the production or supply of goods or

services, for rental to others of for administrative purposes and hat are expected 1o be usad during
maore than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
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Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Preperty, Plant and Equipment is
capitalisad on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the fulure economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will fiow to the Council and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an assal's potential to dsliver
future economic benefits or service poltential (i.e., repalrs and maintenance) is charged as an
expense when it is incurred.

Measurament

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

- the purchase price

- any costs altributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management

- the Initia! estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located

The Council does not capilalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets arg under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition will not increase the cash Hlows of the Council. In the latter case, where the asset is
acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by
the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The differsnce between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Incoma line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionaily. Unlil conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assels Account. Where
gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out
of the General Fund Balance lo the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- infrastructure, community assets and assels under construction = depreciated historical cost

- all other assets - fair value, determined as the amount that wou'd be paid for the asset in its
existing use {existing use value — EUV)

Where there is no markel-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset,
depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assels included in the Balance Sheet al fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that
their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a
minimum avery five years. Incraases in valualions are matched by credits to tha Revaluation
Reserve to racognise unrealised gains. Exceplionally, gains might be credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement where thay arise from the reversal of a loss
previously charged to a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the date of
its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account,

Pags 30



Impairmgn

Assels are assessed at each year-end as io whether thera is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are astimated to be material, the
racoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, whare this is lass than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impalrment losses ars identified, they are accounted for by:

- where there is & balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Ravaluation Resarve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains), with any excess charged to the service ling in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

- where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written
down against the relevant service line{s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Where an impairment loss is raversed subsaquantly, the reversal is credited to the relevant service
line(s) in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

The same accounting treatmant is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a genera! fall in asset
pricas across the board as opposed to a consumption of econamic benefit spacific to an asset as is
in the case of impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depraciation Is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systemalic allocation
of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exceplion is made for assets without a
determinable finite uselul lifa (l.e., freehold tand and certain Community Assets) and assets that are
not yet available for use {i.e., assets under construction).

Deprecation Is calculated on the following bases:
- vghicles, plant and equipment — a percentage of the value of each class of assets in the Balance
Shaet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer

- infrastructure - straight-line allocation over 50 years.

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in refation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Aevaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assels and the depreaciation that would have been chargeable based
on their historical cost being transterred each year from the Revalualion Reserve to the Capital
Adjustment Account.
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xxiii} Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, sclentific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that ara held and maintained pringipally for their contribution to knowledge
and culture.

Heritage Assets are those assats that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations
because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations> they would be held by this authority
in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of heritage.

Tangible and Intangible Heritage Assets (described in this summary of significant accounting
policies as Heritage Assels)

Banbridge District Council's Heritage Assets ara held at the FE McWilliam Gallery in Banbridge. The
Gallery has a collection of heritage assets which are held in support of the primary objective of the
Council's Gallery, i.e. increasing the knowledge, understanding and appreciation of the District's
history and local area. Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of
revaluation gains and losses) in accordance with the Council's accounting policies on property, plant
and equipment. Howaver, some of tha measurement rules are relaxed in relation o heritage assets
as detailed below.

The accounting poiicies in relation to heritage assets that are deemed to include elements of
intangible heritage assets are also presented below. The Council's collections of heritage assets are
accounted for as follows.

Art Collection

The art collection includes Bronze Art Sculptures and Statues and sketches and is reported in the
Balance Sheet at purchase cost at Auclion. The assets within the ant collection are deemed to have
indeterminate lives and a high residual value; hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to
charge depreciation.

The collection is relatively static and acquisitions and donations are relatively rare. When they do
occur, acquisitions are Initially recognised at cost and donaticns are recognised at valuation with
valuations provided by the extarnal valuers and with reference to approprate commercial markels
for the paintings using the most relevant and recent information from sales at auctions.

Heritage Assets - General

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there Is evidence of impairment for
heritage assets, eg where an item has sutfered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubls
arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the
Council's general policies on impairment — see note xxii in this summary of significant accounting
policies. The trustees of the Councll's Museum will cecasionally dispose of heritage assets which
have a doubtful provenance or are unsuitable for public display. The proceeds of such items are
accounted {or in accordance with the Council's general provisions relating to the disposal of
property, pfant and equipment. Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the notes to the
financial statements and are accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting requirements
relating to capital expenditure and capital receipts {agaln see notes xx and xxii in this summary of
significant accounting policies).

xxiv) Provisions

Provislons are made whera an avent has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transtar of economic benelits or service potential,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation. For instance, the Council may
be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment
of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate servica line in the Comprehensive Incoms
and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the cbligation, and
measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required 10 settls the
obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried In the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewad at the end of each financial year — where it becomes
less than probable that a transfer of economic benelits will now be required (or a lower sattlement
than anticipated is made}, the provision is reversed and cradited back to the relevant service.

Whera some or all of the payment required to settle a provision Is expected to be recovered from
another party {8.9. from an insurance clalm), this is only recognised as income for the relevant
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the cbligation.
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xxv) Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movament in Reserves Staternent. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred,
it is charged to the appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then
appropriatad back into the General Fund Balance In the Movement in Reserves Statement so that
there is no net charge against District Rates for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assats, financial
instruments and retirament benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council — these
reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts.

xxvi) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assels

Charges to revenue for non-current assels e.g. services, support services and trading accounts are
debited with tha following amounts to record the cost of holding tixed assets during the year:

- depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

- revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

- amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required 1o raise District Ratas lo cover depreciation, ravaluation and impairment
losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to
contribute towards the reduction iIn its overall borrowing requirement (equal to either an amount
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance).
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by
{minimum revenue provision MAP] in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the differance

betweean the two,

xxvii} Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that doas
not resutt in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year, Where the Council
has determined to mest the cost of this expanditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing,
a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Ba’ance to the Capital
Adjustmant Account then raverses out the amounts charged, so that there Is no impact on the level

of District Rates

xxviii) Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revanua or capital in nature, is shown net of
Value Added Tax, unless it is irrecoverable.
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1b

1e

Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yat Been Adopted

For 2014/15, the following accounting standards have baen issuad but not yet adopted within the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting

IFRS 13 Fair Value {(2011)

The adoption of IFRS 13 Falr Value Measurement was deferred from the 2015/16 Code. Work has
been carried out with HM Treasury to establish objectives for measuring property, plant and
equipment that are consistent with the obfective for the financial statements prescribed in the Code.

This work has confirmed that it is appropriate to focus on valuing the service potential and thus
operating capacity used to deliver goods and services. Propasals wera taken forward into the
consullation for the 2015/16 Code that property, plant and equipment used to support service
delivery is measured on the basis of its servica potential, i.e. and existing use basis. Where no
market is in existence or assets are specialised, a depracialed replacement cost measurement
would be needed. Thesa assets will not be formally valued at 'fair value' and thus under the
requirements of IFRS 13 will be outside its scops.

Tihe Council is off the view that these changes will have no material impact on the authorities
financial position or performance at this stage.

The Council does not hava material liabilities measured on a fair value basis and tharefora does not
anticipate that the provislon of IFRS 13 will have any maleria! impact on liabilities,

1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financtal Assets and Financial Liabilities

The 2013/14 Code included new disclosure requirements whars tinancial assets and financial
liabilities are offset (under the criteria dafined in {AS 32 Financia! Instrumenis: Prasentalion).

It is not anticipated that changes resulting from amendments to J1AS 32 will impact this Aulharity

Annual Improvements cycles 2010 - 2012 and 2011 - 2013,

The IASB carries out cyclical work to identify and implement improvements in IFRS's. The 2010 -
2012 cycle was issued in November 2013 and the 2011 - 2013 cycle was issued in December 2013,
These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the European Union and this endorsemeant
would be required to be adopted into the Code. There are no significant issues affecting the council
emanating from the annual improvementis work.

Amendments to JAS 19 Employee Benefits (Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions)

In November 2013 the IASB issued its amendments lo IAS 19, CIPFA/LASAAC considered the
options in the standard for accounting for employee contributions are concluded that if the amount of
the contributions is independent of the years of service a council is permitted to recognise such
contributions as a reduction to service cost in the period in which the relaled service is renderad.
This Is consistent with the approach cumrently adopted and therefora there will not be any significant
change in accounting practice for the council.

IFRIC 21 Levies (i.e. levies imposed by governments)

IFRIC 21 provides guidance on accounting for levies in the financial statamants of the paying entity.
CIPFA/LASAAC considers that the IFRIC would apply to local authorities and tha 2015/16 code will
be amended to reflect this.

The IFRIC relales to when to recognise a liability to pay a levy that is accounted for in accordance
with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The IFRIC sels out that the
obligating event that gives rise to the Jiability to pay a levy Is the activity that triggers the payment of
the levy, that the liabllity is recognised progressively if tha obligating event occurs over time and that
It an obligation is triggered on reaching a minimum threshold the liabilily is recognised when that
threshaold Is reached.

The Council does not currently have any significant levies and therefore this standard will have no
material impact an the financial stalements.

Critical Judgements In Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting policies set out from 1a, belaw the Council has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
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Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statament of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions mada by the
Council about the futura or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking Inlo account
historical experience, current trends and olher relevant factors. However, because balances cannot
be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially difierent from the assumptions and
estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2015 lor which there is a significant risk of
malerial adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

i) Property. Plant and Equipment

Assols are dapreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the tevel of
rapairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. The current economic
climale makes it uncerain that the Counci! will be able to sustain ils current spending on repairs and
maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.

i) Provisions

The Council has not made a provision for bad debt arising from nan-callection of rate income by
Land & Property Services in future years. It is not certain how much uncollected rates will be written
off by LPS in future ysars.

iif} Penslons Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay penslons depends on a number of complex judgements refating
to the discount rate used, the rata at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement

ages, mortality rales and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is
engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the assumptions ta be applied.

iv) Arrears

A review of significant sundry debtor balances has produced a specific allowance for doubtful debts.
However, In the currant economie climate it is not certain that such an allowance would be sufficient

If collection rates were to detericrate, a doubling of the amaount of doubtful debis would require an
additional £19k to set aside as an allowance.
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BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

2a Segmental Reporting Analysis - Current Year

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statemenl is specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. The segmental reporting
noles within the financial statements are based on the summary first page of the General Fund — Service
Income and Expenditure Analysis in the Department of Environment's Accounts Direction.

The General Fund - Service Income and Expenditure Analysis as presented to the Depariment of
Environment is as follows:

[Comparalive disclosures are reported in Note 2b]

201415

Services Gross Gross Income Net

Expenditure Expenditure/{

Income)
£ £ £

Culture and Heritage 610,502 35,956| 574,546
Recrealion and Sport 6,240,999 1,356,982 4,884,017
Tourism 504,349 52,735 451,614
Community Services 1,187,402 429,715 757,687
Leisure and Recreational Services 8,543,252 1,875,388 6,667,864
Cemetery, Cremation and Mortuary 173,903 59,673 114,230
Envirenmental Health 786,817 264,028 522,789
Flood Defence and Land Drainage 0 0 0
Public Conveniences 146.710H 434 146,276
Licensing 74,503 16,341 58,162
Other Cleaning 404,986 11,031 393,955
Waste Collection 2,682,829 458,775 2,224,054
Waste Disposal 1,367,007 223 1,366,784
Building Control 484,946 342,845 142,101
Other Community Assets 242,867 56,429 186,438
Minor Works 131,648 0 131,648
Environmental Services 6,496,216 1,209,779 5,286,437
Democratic Representation and
Management 680,804 12,930 667,874
Corporate Management 335,140 837 334,303
DRM and Corporate Management 1,015,944 13,767 1,002,177
Economic Development 1,839,662 1,207,037 632,625
Trading Services 0 0 0
Non Distributed Costs 0 14,000 {14,000}
Central Services to the Public 302,249 240,179 62,070
Other Services 2,141,911 1,461,216 660,695
CONTINUING OPERATIQONS 18,197,323 4,560,150 13,637,173
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BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Segmental Reporting Analysis - Current Year

Reconciliation to Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of porifolio income and expenditure relate to the

amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Net Cost of Services in Service Analysis

ltems excluded from Service Analysis:

Add amounts not reported in Service Analysis but included
in Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

0
Aemove amounts reported in Service Analysis but not
included in Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income
and Expendilure Statement 0
Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Items included in Net Operating Expenditure excluded from Service Analysis:
Other Operating Expenditure 0
Financing and Investrnent Income and Expenditure 1,296,547
Surplus or Deficit on Discontinued Operations 0

Net Operating Expenditure per the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

£
13,637,173

13,637,173

1,296,547

14,933,720
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BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

2b Segmental Reporting Analysis - Comparative Year

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. The segmental reporting
notes within the financial statements are based on the summary first page of the General Fund — Service
Income and Expenditure Analysis in the Department of Environment's Accounts Direction.

The General Fund = Service Income and Expenditure Analysis as presented to the Depariment of
Environment is as follows:

201314

Services Gross Gross Income Net

Expenditure Expenditure/(

Income)
£ £ £

Culture and Heritage (440,139) 31,523 {471,662)
Recreation and Sport 5,502,469 1,448,243 4,054,226
Tourlsm 202,468 94,324 108,144
Community Services 750.959“ 341,407 409,552
Leisure and Recreational Services 6,015,757 1,915,497 4,100,260
Cemetery, Cremation and Mortuary 667,830 63,222 604,608
Environmental Health 661,591 100,849| 560,742
Flood Defence and Land Drainage 0 0 0
Public Conveniences 245,091 260 244,831
Licensing 61,415 15,912 45,503
Other Cleaning 395,035 11,588 383,447
Waste Collection 1,607,149 421,813 1,185,336
Waste Disposatl 1,511,004 0 1,511,004
Building Control 477,378 271,787 205,591
Other Community Assets 1,233,020 39,836 1,193,184
Minor Works 128,983 0 128,983
Envircnmental Services 6,988,496 925,267 6,063,229
Democratic Representation and
Management 794,875 147,967 646,908
Corporate Management 315,465 21,210 294,255
DRM and Corporate Management 1,110,340 169,177 941,163
Economic Development 1,619,428 1,157,096 462,332
Trading Services 0 0 0
Non Distributed Costs 3,971 13,000 (9,029)
Central Services to the Public 296,746 256,242 40,504
Other Services 1,920,145 1,426,338 493,807
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 16,034,738 4,436,279 11,598,459
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Reconciliation to Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of portfolic income and expenditure relate to the
amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

£ £
Net Cost of Services in Service Analysis 11,598,459

ltems excluded from Service Analysis:

Add amounts not reported in Service Analysis but included
in Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Remove amounts reported in Service Analysis but not
included in Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement 11,598,459

Items included in Net Operating Expenditure excluded from Service Analysis:

Other Operating Expenditure (402}
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 1,337,397
Surplus or Deficit on Discorlinued Operations 0

1,336,995
Net Operating Expenditure per the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 12,935,454
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3b

BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding hasis under regulations

201415 2014115 201214 201314
Noles £ £ £ £
Amaunts includad in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be
excluded when determining the Movement on the General
Fund Balance for the year:
Impairments {losses & reversals) of nan-current assets 10a/b & 10d/e ) 0
Derecognition {other than disposgal) of nan-current assets 10a/b & 10d/e 0 i}
Revaluation increases/decreases laken o Surplus/Deficit on
the Provision of Services 10a/b & 10d'e [1] {1,416 .588)
Depreciation charged in the year on non-current assets 10a/10b,23 2.428.263 2,429,263] 2.219.284 802,676
Net Revenue expenditure lunded from capital under statute 0 0
Carmrying amount of non current assats sold 10a/b & 10d/e 0 10,000
Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, Investment property and
intangible assels 23,25 0 0l (10.402) (402)
Difference between finance costs calculated on an accounting
basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with statutory
requirermenis 25 0 1]
Net charges made for retirament benefits in accordance with
1AS 19 20 1,515,000 1,414,000
Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditura 11,25 (242.683) {401,034)
Capital Grants and Danated Assets Receivable and Applied in
year 9b (292,943) {378,462)
Capital Grams Receivable and Unapplied in year fc 0 0
Rates Claw-Back Reserve 25a/25b 0 0
Adjusimenis in relation to Short-term compensated absences 17 {7.834) 14,685
Adjustments in relation to Lessor Amangements 0 0
Landfill Regulations Reserve Adjustment 25a/25h 0 4]
Provisions Discouni Rate Reserve Adjustmeni 258/25b 0 o
Amaunts not included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditura Statement but required by statuts to be
inciuded when detsrmining the Movemant an the Ganeral
Fund Balance for the year
Statutery Provision for the financing of Capital Investment 25a/25b (1,197,821} {1,220,566)
Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC and
relirement benefits payable direct to pensioners 20a (1,072,000) {969.000)
1,131,182 {738,103)
Net transfers (toMirom statutory and other earmarked reserves:
2014015 201615]  2019/14 201314
£ E £ £
Capital Fund
Interast 0 0
Cher 25a/25b 0 0 [t 4}
Renawal and Repairs Fund
Intevest 0 0
Othar 25a/25h 0 ] 0 0
Other Funds and earmarked reserves
Interest 47 0
Other 258/25b 0 0 gl 0
0 0
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4b

BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations

Miscellaneous powers to make payments

Under section 37 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011,
the council may make payments for any purpose which in its opinion are in the
interests of, and will bring direct benefit to:

a) the Council;
b) its district or any part of its district;
c) the inhabitants of its district or any part of its district.

Limits on special payments are calculated by reference to section 40 of the Local
Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and for this council the resulting
limit was £26,087 for 2014/15 (£25,577 in 2013/14).

The Actual expenditure during 2014/15 amounted to £3,401 (£3,547 in 2013/14).

External Audit Fees

The Council has incurred the following costs relating to the annual audit of the
Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and other services provided by
the Councils external auditors.

2014/15 2013/14)

£ £

External Audit Fees 18,500 16,500|
Grant Claim Certification Fees 0 1]
QOther Fees ] 0
18,500] 16,500

There were no other fees payable in respect of any other services provided by the
appointed auditor over and above those described above (2013/14 £NIL).
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BANBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations (Continued)

Operating and Finance Leases
Council as Lessor:
Finance Leases (Council as lessor)

The Council has leased out properly to Banbridge District Enterprises Lid on a finance lease with a remaining term
of 93 years.

The present value of lease payments receivable under the finance lease armangements is recognised as a
receivable and included in both shori and long term debtors. The difference between the gross amount receivable
and the present value of the amounts receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

2015 2014

£ £
Long Term Debtors
Finance leases-gross receivables 120,962 121,867
Less-Unearned finance income ] 1]
Less-Unguaranteed residual value of 0 0
property
Net present value 120,962 121,867
Short Term Debtors
Finance leases-gross receivables 904 898
Less-Uneamed finance income 0 0
Less-Unguaranteed residual value of
propeity 0 0
Net present value 904 898
Gross receivables from finance leases
No later than 1 year 904 898
Later than 1 year and no later than 5
years 3,684 3,658
Later than § years 117,277 118,209
Total gross receivables 121,865 122,765
Less-Uneamed future finance income on
finance leases 0 0
Less-Unguaranteed residual value of
propery 0 ¢
Net investment in finance leases 121,865 122,765
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The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows:

2015 2014
£ £
No laterthan 1 year 904 898
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 3,711 3,658
years
Later than 5 years 117,250 118,209
Total gross receivables 121,865 122,765

The unguaranteed residual values of the assets leased under finance leases at the end of the year are estimated at
£nil (Previous year £nil}

The accumutated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments receivable is £nil (comparative year £nil)

No contingent rents were recognised as receivable by the Council.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. The average interest
rate contracted is approximately 0.73% {comparative year 0.73%)

Operating Leases {Council as lessor)

The Council, in accordance with its statutory and discretionary responsibilities, leases out properly and equipment
under operating leases for the following purposes:

- for the provision of community services, such as sports facililies, lourism services and community centres

- for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for small local businesses

- any other purposes

Rental income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the current year amounts to
£69,754 (previous year: £66,967). No contingent rents were recognised.
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The lease coniracts are all non-cancellable and do not include an extension gption. The lease terms are between 1
and 8 years. Future minimum lease income is set out below; which do not include annual lease income for
contracts in an extension period which are expected to generate an additional £40,474 in the next 12 months.

2015 2014
Land and Vehicles, plant Land and | Vehicles, plant
buildings and equipment buildings | and equipment
£ £ £ £
Minimum lease rentals receivable:
No later than { year 20,160 0 37,504 0
Later than § yearand no later than 5 62,400 0 66,960 0
years
Later than 5 years 31,200 0 46,800 0
113,760 1] 151,264 o

The asssets leased by the Council to third parties are included in the following categories of Property, Plant and
Equipment. Although only part of the asset may be within the lease agreement, the carrying values of the assels

are as follows:

2015 2014
Land and Vehicles, plant Land and | Vehicles, plant
buildings and equipment buildings | and equipment
£ £ £ £
Cost 3,483,380 0 3,463,187 0
Accumulated depreciation and {93,239) 0 (95,879) 1]
impairmenis at 1 April
Depreciation charge for the vear (191,294) 0 {189,118} 0
Impairments 0 0 {20,193) 4]
Revaluation 65,266
3,264,113 0 3,157,997 0

Council as Lessee:

Finance Leases (Council as lessee)

A number of Council's vehicles are held under finance leases. The net carrying amount of the vehicles held under
finance lease arrangements is £nil (2014 £15,000). The assets are included under Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
which form an integral part of property, plant and equipment (see Note 10c-leased assels). The rentals paid for
vehicles held under finance leases totalled £18,383 (2014 £25,616).

Furthermore, Council holds some equipment under Finance Leases. The net carrying amount of the equipment

held under finance lease arrangements is £3,667 (2014 £8,663). The assets are included under Vehicles, Plant &
Equipment which form an integral part of property, plant and equipment (see nole 10c-leased assels). The rentals
paid for equipment held under finance leases totalled £4,498 (2014 £6,594).
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No contingent rentals were recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
during the reporting peried under review, and no future sub-lease income is expected to be received, as all assets

are used exclusively by the council.

The lease agreements lor the vehicles and equipment include fixed lease payments and a purchase option at the
end of the respective lease terms. The agreemenls are non-cancellable but do not include any further restrictions.

Future minimum finance lease payments at the end of each reporting period under review are as follows:

Within 1 year 1to 5 years After 5 years Total
£ £ £ £

201415
Finance leases payments 7,198 2,134 0 9,332
Less: finance charges (1,247) (424) 0 (1,671)
Net present value 5,951 1,710 0 7,661
2013/14
Finance leases payments 21,668 9,302 0 30,970
Less: finance charges (3,442) (1,641) 0 (5,083)
Net present value 18,226 7,661 14 25,887
2012113
Finance leases payments 28,899 26,544 0 55,4